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December 15, 2020 
 
Jerry Gabrielatos 
West Linn City Manager 
22500 Salamo Rd.West Linn, OR 97068 
JGabrielatos@westlinnoregon.gov 

 

 
Dear Mr. Gabrielatos: 

Last week lawyers for the City of West Linn provided me a copy of the December 2020 OIR 
report and invited me to respond to it. 
 
It appears OIR’s criticism of me rests primarily on its assessment of my decision in June of 2018 
to recuse myself from the internal investigation the WLPD made of Mr. Fesser’s tort claim notice 
and assign it to Capt. Hennelly. 
 
On July 9, 2020, not having heard from anyone in city management of specific reasons for the 
city’s decision to place me on administrative leave in April, I wrote a letter to the acting city 
manager, John Williams, in an attempt to account for my activities and decisions relating to the 
Michael Fesser matter. That letter addresses much of what is said about me in the OIR report. 
 
I attach it here and ask that it, along with a copy of this letter, be made part of my official 
personnel file and be posted on the city’s web site. 
 
In summary fashion, I would like to emphasize the following: 
  
 1.  My decision to recuse myself and assign the internal investigation to Capt. 
Hennelly was consistent with Oregon law enforcement practice, 
  
 2. OIR frequently characterizes that investigation as “cursory.” That was not my 
direction to Captain Hennelly when I recused myself. 
 
 3. My instructions to Capt. Hennelly were: to thoroughly investigate the tort claim 
notice allegations; determine if there is evidence of criminal behavior within the WLPD that 
support the allegations in the tort claim notice; if so, refer the investigation to an independent law 
enforcement agency; if not determine and administer appropriate disciplinary measures. 
  
 4. Recusal from the internal investigation did not automatically extend to recusal 
from the subsequent civil law suit: 
 
  a)  On the two occasions I was told to speak with the city councilors about the 
 lawsuit, I was directed to do so by my superior, City Manager Stein, even after reminding 
 her on both occassions of my recusal from the internal investigation, which by then had 
 been completed. 
 
  I repeated to council the information I had been given by Capt. Hennelly and 
 attorneys hired to defend the City against Mr. Fesser’s lawsuit. At both meetings those 
 lawyers and the City Attorney corroborated much of what I had reported to the Council. 
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Moreover, after reciting a number of legal flaws identified in Mr. Fesser’s lawsuit, they 
essentially characterized it for the Council as meritless. Not being a lawyer, I assumed 

 their opinions to be accurate. 
 
  b)  The role I played in gathering discovery responses from WLPD for that 
 lawsuit was merely logistical. I had been left that responsibility by the City to ensure that 
 everything requested was fully provided and discovery deadlines were met. 
 
 5. The year and a half civil litigation which occurred between July 2018 and 
February 2020 uncovered serious problems in the WLPD investigation of Fesser, all of which 
occurred prior to my employment. To this day, I have never been fully briefed on exactly what 
occurred or how it was discovered. It was not until February of 2020, after the City’s decision 
was made to settle the case, that I learned from the Clackamas County District Attorney's office 
of evidence of likely false statements made by Officer Reeves during the internal investigation. I 
placed Reeves on leave at that time. Most of what I now know to be true, I learned from the 
ensuing investigation by the District Attorney. 
 
As I told the OIR investigators, in retrospect I wish I had turned WLPD’s internal investigation 
over to an outside agency when my employment began in June of 2018. But at all times I was 
acting in good faith and following what I know to be appropriate police department practices. 
 
The department I inherited form former Chief Timeus in June 2018 was a mess. Morale and 
staffing were low, professional best practices were lacking, and many policies and procedures 
were inadequate. My career in law enforcement prepared me to fix those things. I regret that I 
will not have the opportunity to complete the reforms I began. 
 
I signed the severance agreement that you provided earlier this month, because as an “at will” 
employee, I understood that you could terminate my employment at any time.  
 
I regret that you chose not to speak with me before making that decision. 
 
Still I commend your goal of establishing a professional and unbiased police department for the 
City of West Linn. No one wants that more than I do. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Terry Kruger 
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